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FILED 
APR 2 5 2019 

CLE'R'I, U . 't"~~:T COURT'>OllTHERN < I r(SI\CALl'.·ORNIA
,HY ,.___f:)_t'PUTY 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 
V. 

SHANNON MOORE DEVANE, 

Defendant. 

case No. \ C\Gf" \L\'1.D ·-\o~ .-J 

INFORMATION 

Title 18, United States Code, 
Section 371 - Conspiracy 

The United States charges: 

COUNT 1 
CONSPIRACY 

18 u.s.c. § 371 

Beginning no later than March 2014 and continuing through at least 

August 2015, within the Southern District of California and elsewhere, 

defendant SHANNON MOORE DEVANE did knowingly and intentionally conspire 

with PAUL TURLEY, MUNIR UWAYDAH, WENDEE LUKE, STEVEN RIGLER (all charged 

elsewhere) and others to use facilities in interstate commerce with the 

intent to promote, manage, establish, carry on, distribute the proceeds 

of, and facilitate the promotion, management, establishment, carrying 

on, and distribution of the proceeds of an unlawful activity, that is, 

bribery in violation of California Labor Code Sections 139.3, 139.32, 

and 3215, California Business and Professions Code Section 650, and 

California Insurance Code Section 750, and thereafter, performed and 
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attempted to perform an act to promote, manage, establish, carry on, 

distribute the proceeds of, and facilitate the promotion, management, 

establishment, carrying on, and distribute the proceeds of said unlawful 

activity, in violation of Title 18, united States Code, Sections 

1952 (a) (1) (A), (a) (3) (A), and (2), and that, as an overt act in 

furtherance of the conspiracy, defendant SHANNON MOORE DEVANE delivered 

$10,000 in cash to Dr. Steven Rigler in a parking lot on or about April 

23, 2015. 

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371. 

ROBERTS. BREWER, JR. 
United States Attorney 

DATED: •'f /t1'/w19. 
v~ 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

2 
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ROBERT S. BREWER, JR. 
United States Attorney 
VALERIE H. CHU 
Assista:1t United States Attorney 
California Ba!" No. 241109 
CAROLINE P. HAN 
Assistant United St.at-es Attorney 
California Bar No. 250301 
Federa-1 Office Building 
880 E'r_ont Street, Room 6293 
San J)iego, California 92101-8893 

Attorneys fo~ United States af A~erica 
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FILED fr 1APR 2~ 2019 
CLERKU.S,DISTRICTCOURT f 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 
BV DE~IJ]Y'. 

ONITEP 

SOUTHERN 

UNI'.:'ED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 
v. 

SHANNON ~ORE D3VANE, 

Defendant. 

STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF CALIFOP.IIIA 

Case No· \4CJ(\Ll2D-~ <), 

FLEA AGREEMENT 

IT IS HEREBY AGRE:ED between .:.he pl.aintiff, UNITED STATSS OF AMF.RICA, 

t.hrough its :::01.1'."!sel, Adam:.. 8raverrr,anr /Jnite-cl States Atcor:ney, and Fred 

Sheppard, Vale:rie H, Chu and car:o:ine P. Han, Assistant United states 

Atto:rneys, 

consent of 

1/ 

I,' 

ii 

II 

/I 

/1 

ar~.d 

Anthony Colcmbo, 

defenda!tt SHANNON 

:::o:n1sel 

MOORE 

for 

DEVAN£, 

defendant, 

w..'_t;.h 

as 

the advice 

fellows: 

and 

// 

Def. Initials », 
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1 
I 

1 
THE PLEA 

2 1. This agreement is intended to bind the .fellowing parties: 

3 a. Defer.dant Si-lANNON MOORE DEVANE; 

4 b. 'Ihe U:"tited States At.to.rney' s Office ("USAO") a.s to the ir.stat1t 

case in the Oni ted States District Court for the Southern5 

District of Califo:"nia (hereinafter "the federal case 0 
); and 

6 
c. The San Diego County District Attorney's Office ("SDCDAO") as 

7 
to Crimina~ Case Number CD276470 currently pending in the 

8 Superior court of Cal.::.fcrnia, cour,ty of San :U.ego (hereinafter 

9 "the state case"). 

10 2. This plea agreement can nor- bind any other federal, state or 

local prosecuting, administ:::-ative, or regulatory authorities, alth::;;i:19h
11 

the ~JSAO or SDCDAO will br-ing this plea agreement to the attention of 

other authorities if requested by De:endan~. 
13 

3, This plea agreement is part of a 1'package" disposit i.on. 

14 Jefenda:1t to receive the. be:iefits of this agreement, Defendant must 

15 agree to a separate plea agr:eemer.t ·with the USAO and SDCDAO in each 

16 federal ar.d state case no :ater .:.ha!: 1:-ebr-.1a:ry 28, 2019, unless another 

date !s agreed upon by the parties. 

4. Wit~1 regards to the federal case, Defendant agrees to waive 
18 

Indict:nent and plead guil.:.y to an Information charging Conspiracy to 
19 

Violate t:he Travel Act, ir. violation of 18 lJ.S.:::.:. § 371. 

20 5. In exchange for Defendant's guilty plea ~n the faderal case, 

21 the USA.0 agrees to not p.!'osecuL-e iJefenda:\t thereafter for conduct set 

fvrth in the factual basis of this ag!:"eer:1ent ur:~ess either.: Defendanl22 

breaches the ple::1 ,:lgrev.:!:nent or tt'.e g1:ilty pleas entered pursui:rnt to th) s 
23 

plea agreement are se.t aside for any reason. Defendant ex:pr::essly waives 
24 

al: constitut1onal and stctutory de::'enses to tte ini tiatio:1 of 

25 charges not br:ought pursuant to ::-.his agr:eer:.ent. 

26 6. With regards to the state case, Defendant agrees to plead 

27 gui!r.y tc the fol:owing charges ir r:.he foll-:,wtng case; 

28 
2 

Def. :n.l tial3 

https://PagelD.17
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a. Case Number CJ279..91.9_,__!?e9p.le v. LUk,§.i____fil~: Count. 1, 
unlawfully offer, delJ.ver, rece::ve and accept compensaUon 

for referral of patients in violation 0£ Labor Code Sect.ion 
3215, and Count 15, unlawfully conceal an event affectin9 an 

insurar.ce claim, in violation. of California penal Code 
Section 550(b) (3}. The co:nbined maximum penalty for: !Joth 
counts is 5 yea.:::-s, 8 months in prison and a fine of $6~, OCO. 

7. In exchange for Defendant I s plea to the above-referenced 

counts i-n tt.e state case, the SDC:DAO agrees to dismiss the remaining 

counts against her wi-th a waiver pursuant to Peop.ie v. Harvey, 25 Cal.3d 

754 (1979). Tlie SC-CDAO further agrees to recotrunend that Defendant be 

sentenced to no more than the sente.r..c:e i;nposed by the federal judge in 

the federal case, but in no event more than Zive years in prison, to be 

served concurrently with her sentence in the federal case, and that. she 

rece?..ve the sta;1dard rest.it.uticn fine, .ar.d tl"!.at the court. order full 

restitution. Copies of the written and signed plea agreement ::.n the 

state court case are incorporated herein. 

II 

NATURE OF THE OFFENSE 

A. FEDERAL CASE; BLEtEN'l'S EXP:..AINED 

Defendant ·,1r!derstands that the offense to whi.ch Defe.r:dant are 

pleading gui.lt.y has t.:h@ following e2.e.rr,ents: 

Conspiracy [18 u.s.c. § 371] 

1. There was a:-: agreeme::1t between two or :"'.!Ore persons Lo 

violate the T~avel Act; ar.d 

2. The defendant entered into the agreement knowing of at 

lease cne of its objects and intending to help accomplish 

it. 

3. One of tte membe.~s of the conspiracy pe::.-formed at least 

one overt act fc,r the purpose of carrying out the 

conspiracy 

1· . I 

I! 

3 
Def. Ini-..:ictl.s 

https://insurar.ce
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Tr:avel Act Violation (1.f3 u.s.c. §1952 (a} (l) (Al, (a) (3) (A) l 

B. 

1. 'l'he defendar.t. used fcH;_:_}ity in interstate oi: for.eign 

commerc-?., to w:..t.; a cellular telephone, with t:,e inten': 

7,c facilitate t:.ht.:! dist.rib1,1ticn of pi:oceeds •-:Jf, or 

prrxnotion, manaqemer. '.:., est:abl isl-;ment, or ca::ry ing or, ot 

:.:.cm~.e.::c.ia,;. triDery; and 

2. Jl.fte.:::- dcir.g so :::1e defendant made payments of Uni~ed 

s•;.at~s Cur:i:-ency .:.n o:::de!. to further che commercia:'.. 

bribery scheme, 

FS9ER.!\.L CASE 1:AC'?CJ!i.L BAS:S; ELEM3N1'S UNOE;RS'l'OOC AND ADM!'l''I'E(2 

Defendant has £,Jll y dis:::::_:ssect the facr.s o:!: the federa 1 case and t:le 

state case with defense cot:nsel. Defendant. has ccmmi:.ted ead: of the 

eiements of conspi~acy to Vio.:.a::.e the Travel Act, if! violation of 18 

U . .$.C. § 371 1 and admits that thet:B is a :actual ba;si.~ ;'.:en: the guilt'.{ 

plea in the federal case. SpecifiGa~lYr Defendant admits: 

l. De:Eenda.1t Shannon Mocfe Devar.e worked as an office oa;1ager in 

15 :.:·ie. healthcare ir.dustry fer many years th~:=iug:1ou1..:. California, including 

16 in i,os A:1geles, Grange, 3-.:.ver.side, Y.erri, lmpetial, and San Diego 

17 

18 

ccu:itie3, and the ::er.tral District of California and Southe.r-n )i.strict 

of i:a:ifornia, and ad1r.its -chat she. f<:tcilitated ar:d aided and abetted 

activities constit1.:.ting ccns?lracy, violations of the Travel Act, 

honest services [-::ae:.;.i, and healtt ca~e f:c::i.ud, ir.cluding those described 

2 J herein. 

21 

n 

23 

2. A purpose of. ;:.he conspiracy •,vas to fra;__-idulently obtair:, money 

frcm California l.v·o:-kers' C:>mpe-n:1r"lti.::in System ("CWCS") insurers by 

sub:nitti.iq, o::- caus::i.r.g to be su.:)r-:1i-::t.ed, claims for ancillary proced~res 

at:.orneys, 

a!lciL:.ary me.::li~a: procedures, 

2f physician::;' fid·Jciary duty t.o t:ce.'...r: pat-=..errts, and -:::oncea::Lng fr:,::w1 

27 

28 

insurers the brit-es thac rendered the cla.i.ms 1;r:payable under Cal.i fr>rr:ia 

law. 

4 
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l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
creams, a~d orthopedic consultations. 

7 4. Defendant: and - offered to pay monetary kickbacks fer the 

referral o-f Dr. Stev~H'. Rig~.er' s pctients for pain management L.rea.tments8 

ar1d the p.:re:s::::r:'..ption of rr.edications a.r:d compound creams,9 
Defendant made er caused to be made payments f.rom -

10 5' to other health care pr:ov.tclo::-s, 

refer r::als in exchange for the. 

12 
payment cf kickbacks. 

13 Defendant made or ;;ausc1d to be made kickbacks to app1.'1.cant
6, 

attorney5 or their designee3, for the ~eferral of patients,
1 

Defendant utiLized a :c~cilit:y i:1 interstate commerce, that is,
15 7' 

a :::cllular telephone, to arrange for payments that ct.:insti.tute commercial 

bribery under state law, ~.nc.l.cdJng by ex~·;J1anging text messages with Dr:. 
17 

Rigler. 
18 8. From µpproxir:t:ltely Ma.rc:h 6, 201 11 thrOtJgh August 18, 2015, 

r.:0£e.ndant and - ccnspired ~o pay J. 2 k).ckback cl1Hcks totaling 

$10,000 to be paid in exchange !or patient re!c~rals from Dr. R!gle~.20 
The checks were paid by Defendant and- to 01:·. Ri,qler on or aboi...;t

21 
the followinq dales in the foll.owi:1.g amc:unts in violation of cali:'ornia 

22 
:Liabcr Code 321.5, which Oe.f(~ndant agrees constitutes commercial bribery 

23 ~nder California state law and overt acts of the conspiracy: 

24 1) March 6, 20:4: $5,COG 

25 2) Aug..:s'.: i'L 2014: $5,000 

3) September 8, 20i4: :;s, )CO20 
4) October 10, 2014: $5,CO~!27 
5) Novemt)er 7, 20.14-: $5,000 

2.8 s Initial.s 25t)uef. ------

conipan.ies that 

companies for p::·ov.l.dinq ancillary serv.ices for workers' compensat:ion 

patients, such as pctin. managemf;Jnl: t.r.eatme:1ts 1 m0dications, compound 

11 in o~der to einsure a steady stream of 
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6) Jar::.i.ary 13, 2015: SS,000 

7) Ylflrch 4, 2015: $5, COO 

81 Ap,r.i1 15, 2015: $SI coo 
9) May 14, Z0l5: :;;7,5-00 

lO)Ju~e 12, 2015: $7,500 

l1JAuqust lB, 20.:i.5: ip,500 

12)Octobe:r.: 21, 2015: $7,500 

9, On Apr.il 23r 2015, at the -di~ecLion of 

- Defendant delivered $10,000 in cash to Dr, Rigler in a 

McDonald's parking lot as compensation fa:.· toxicology referrals. 

10. In J:!dd.itio.:1, Defendant agrees af'.d admits that the intended 

loss encompassed by the total ::riminal conduct totaled between S2S01 000 

C. STATE CASE: l::LE:MBNTS EXPLAINED 

Defendant understands that th8 offe:ises to whic:1 she i.s pleading 

gu:'..lt_y ir. the state case have the following elerr.e.nts ~ 

On.lawfully Cor.ceal an Ever.t Affectinq a:r: ln.5urance Claim 

[Califor~!a Penal Code, Sectio~ 550(b) (3)! 

1. Defendufft. did, tmowir:gly assist, or conspire with 

anothe.::-, to conc.:eal or .:'ail t:o disclose the occ:.1ri~ence 

of an event; 

;~. That. af::'ects nny person 1 s right or entitlement to ar. 

i~surance benefit ~c payment, or amount of benefit or 

pay:nent; and 

3 t-v.ith th(;. .sp,;ic.if.:c intent to defra.ud. 

Uiilawfully Accept Compensation for Refe:.::rB.l of Patients 

(Ca.1.ifornia Labor Code, Section 3215 

1. Defendant ac:::,:'..:19 i:ndividu<J.2.ly, o:::- ttirough t-,is employees 

or agents of::"ered or del.ivered consideration tti a.:10ther; 

2. The consideration was tc provide compensation for patient 

~eterrals; 

6 1PDef. In:Lt:'..als 

https://i:ndividu<J.2.ly
https://defra.ud
https://sp,;ic.if
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3. The patie~t referrals were ta perform and/or obtain 

5ervioes or benefits under the Wcrkecs' Compensation 

Insuran~e ?rogram; and 

4. When she of.:ered oi: de.livered consideration, she knew or 

1:e.Asonably should have knovm the cor.sideration was 

compensation for patient referrals. 

D. STATE CASES f:'AC7~A1 f?ASES: E'.LEMENTS UNOERS'I'OOD AND ADMITTED 

Defendant has fully discussed the facts of the state cases v1ith 

defense ccnrnsel. Defer.d2,nt has com.rnitted each of the elements of 

unlawf.ully cor:.ce.aling an event affecting an insur.ance claim, :'.,.n 

v:.olation of California ?@naJ. Code, Section 550 (b) (3) and unlawfully 

receiving and accept ir1g compensation fer r.eferra l o C patients in 

violation of: California Lnbor Code SectJ.on 321:°), ancl admits that there 

is a factua: basis ~or the qui:ty plea in the state case. I~ addition 

Lo the above federe,l factua:, basis, is incorporated herein, 

Defendant admits t.hs:,: fo.1 lowing facts are also true o.nd Ur'ldisput-ed:, 

l\s to Count 1, on or «bout Ma.i:c:h 6, 2014 :Jefendant Shar..non Moore. 

Devane and did offer: and <le1 iver a $5 1 000 chec\ f.t·orn 

Firstline Health, Ir.c. to Dr, Stevr:;n Rigler r1S comper:sation for the 

referral of patients to obtain services or berefits pursua~t to the 

California .Workers' Compensation law, in viol.atior: of Califocnia Labor 

Code, Section 3215. 

As to Count 15, on or abou:., and between Junuary 1, 2014 and August 

JO, 2015, Moore ar,d di.ct u:)lawful 1 y conceal and knowingly 

;tail to c;lisclo.':H➔ the occurrence of, and knowj_ngly assist and conspi r.e 

wiLh another person to conceal and kr:ow:;. . .ngly fail to d.isclose the 

occurre~ce cf1 an ever1t that affected a person's initial and co~tln~ed 

right aiid entitlement t.o a.n i:1sura:ide benefit and payment, and tf'.e 

amounr. of a benefit and payme:1t ::o which tJ'ie person was entitled (AIG 

Jf;s'Jrance - prescription drug benefits), in vio.lation of California 

Pena: Code Section 550 (bl (3) hy concP.aling the payr'.l.Ont of kickbacks for 

these patients. 

7 
Def. Initials~--
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III 

PENALTIES 

A. 

Defendant understands that Conspiracy to VioJ.ate the T~:avel Act, 

in violation of 1a u.s.c. § 371, to which Defer.dant is pleadir.g guilty 

in the federal case carries the following penalties: 

A. a max.imum five years in prison; 

B. a maximum $250,000 fine.; 

C. a mandatory special assessment of $10J per count; and 

I). a t?...rm of supervised re:;.ease of up to three years. Defendant 

understands that. failure to corrcply with any of the cond.itio:1.s 

of supervised release rnay result in !'.'evocation of supervised 

release, requiring defendant to serve in prison, upon any suer. 

i::evocatio:1, al: or part o: the stat·Jtory maximum ter-m of 

supervised release for the 0£fe:1se that res·.Jl ted in such term 

of supervised celease. 

IV 

DEFENDANT'S NAIVER OF TRIAL RIGHTS IN FEDERAL CASE 

Defendants understand ~hat this guilty plea waives the right to: 

A. Continue to plead not guilty and require the Government to 

prove the elemer.ts of the crime beyond a reasor..able doubt,· 

8, A speedy ar.d pub:ic trial by j·..1.:y; 

c. The assistance of cou~sel at all stages of trial; 

D. Confront and cross-exaffiine adverse witnesses; 

E. Testify and present "'1Videnc-s: and to have wi~nesses test:fy 

on behalf c,f defendant,· and, 

F. Not test.::.fy or have any adverse i:lferences drawn fro~ the
231 failare to testify. 
24 

II 

II 
26 II 

27 !, 

28 
8 

•.• !o:c_l Det. Initials ~-
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V 

DEFENDANT ACKNOWLEDGES NO PRJ!:TRIAL RIGHT,TO BE 

PROVIDED WITH IMPEACHMENT AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE INFORMATION 

'r:1.e OSAO and SDCDAO :::::epreser.t that a:1y inf~r:rr.ation establishi:ig the 

factual innocence of Defendant known to the undersigned prosecutors :Ln 

this case has been turned over to Defendant. 'the USAO and SDCDAO v,ill 

contin'.1e to p~ovtcte such info:crr.aticn establishing the fa::;tual innocence 

of Defendant. 

Defendant unders-r..ar.ds :.:.hat if this case p.?:oceeded to trial, the 

USA.0 and SDCDAO wouid be :cequi red to p.:::ov:'..de impeachment .in.:ormat.ion 

relati:i.q to any informants or- other witnesses. In addition 1 if Defendant 

raised an affirmative defense, the VSAO and S~CDAO would be required to 

provide .information in its possess::..on that supports ouch a defense. 

oe-:endant acknowledges, however, that by pleading guilty, Defendant will 

not be provided this in_:"or,r:iation, if any 1 and De.':endaot also waives the 

right to this information. F.:.nally, Defe.nda:1t agrees not t.o attempt to 

withdraw tte guilty p:ea or to file a collateral attack based on the 

existence of this info~mation, 

VI 

DEFENDANT 1 S REPRESENTATION THAT GUILTY 

PLEAS A$lE. KNOWING AND VOLm.tTARY 

Defendant rep:esent :hat: 

A. Defendant has had a full opportu~ity to discuss all the =acts 

and ci r.cllmstances of t_his case with defense counsel and have 

a clear understanding of the charges and the cor.sequences of 

this plea. De:"endanl;_ understands that, by pleading guilty 1 

Defendant may be givir.g up, and rendered ine.:.igible to 

receive, valuable govern'.l1ent bene::".its and c-1.vic right.s, .such 

as the r:ight to vote, :he rigt:t to possess a firearm, the 

r.ight to hold offi:::e, and the .eight to serve on a jury. 

Defendant further u:iG.e;:stands that the conviction in this Qase 

may s·.1bject defendant to various collateral co.r.sequences, 

ioc:..uding but not .1.imi ted to d2portatiora, remova 1 or other 

9 Def. initials 

https://unders-r..ar
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adverse immigration conseque:-ices; revocation of probation, 

paro.:.e, or. supervised release in another case; debarmer.t from 

government contracting; and suspensioJ~ or revocation of a 

profes~sional license, as wel.: as civi: and administrative 

liability, none o:" which will .serve as gro·.mds to withdraw 

defendant's guilty plea. 

L'L No one has made any p::'omises or offered ar:.y rewards in 

re.turn for this gui}.ty plea, other than those contained in 

thls agreement or otherwise disclosed to the Court. 

c. No one has threat.ened Defendant's family to induce this 

guilty plea. 

D. Defendant i5 pleading guilty because in truth and in fact the 

Defendan::: js guilty and for no other reason. 

VII 

l\.P~LICABILITY OF SENTENCING GUIDELINES 

Defendant understands the sentence imposed will be based on the 

factor:s set forth in 18 u.s.c. § 3553(a) Def-endant understands further 

that in imposir,g the sentence, the ser.tencing judge must consult the 

United States Sentencing Guidelines (Guidelines) and take them into 

account. Jefendant has discussed the Guidelines with defense counse.l 

and understand that the Guidelines are only advisory, not mandatory, and 

the Court may impose a sentence more severe o.r less severe than otherwise 

appl.:'..cable under the G·~1ide.:..i.nes, up to .t~1e maximum i.n the statu:::e 8f 

conviction. Defendant ur.der:star.ds furthe~ that the sentence canr..ot be 

determined until a presentonce report has been p~epared by the U.S. 

Probation Office and both defense cou:1sel and the- USAO have had an 

opportunity to :::-eview and challenge the presentence report.. Nothing- in 

this plea agreement shal: be co:1st:-ued as limiting the USAOr s duty to 

p:.-ovide complete and accurate facts to the district court and the U.S. 

Proba-c..::.or:. Office. 

Ii 

II 
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VIII 

SENTENCE IS WITHIN SOLE DISCRETION OF .JUDGE 

This plea agreement is made pursuant to F12deral Ru2.e of Criminal 

Procedure 11 (cl (11 (B). Defendant t:nderstands that the sentence is 

within the scle d.:scretion of tt:.e se.:-1tencing judge. The USAO has r.o::. 

made and will not make <01ny representation as to what sentence the 

Defendant will receive. Defendant understands that the sentencing judge 

ma.y impose the maximum sentence provided by statute, and is also aware 

that any estimate of 1:he probable sentence by defense counsel is a 

prediction, not a promise, and is not: binding on the Court. Likewise, 

the r~commendation ma.de by the USAO is not binding on the Court, and it 

is uncertain at this tir:.e wr:a.t Defendant's ser.tence will be. Defendant 

also has been advised and ur.derstands that ~f the sentencing judge does 

not follow any of the pa:::-ties' sentencing recommendations, Defendant 

nevertheless has no right to withdraw her pleas. 

IX 

P.ARTIES 1 SEN~ENCING :RECOMMENDATIONS 

A. SENT.8NCIMG GOIDEL::!:NE CAl,CULA":'lONS 

Although the partie:::5 understc1.nd that the Guidelines are nnly 

advisory and just one of the fact.ors the Ccurt will consider under 18 

o.s.c. § 3553 (a) in imposing a sentencer the parties wi 11 jointly 

recomnend the £ollowir.g Base Offense Level, Specific Offense 

Characteristics, Adjustmen':s a:id Depar.tures: 

l. Base Offense Level [§ 2E1.1] 6 

2. Intended loss mo.LI:! tha:1 $25C, 000 +12 

[§ 2Bl. l (b) {1) (JI) 

3. Sophist:'..cated Means (§ 2Bl.1 (b) (10} {Cl j +2 

4. Minor Role 

5. Acceptance of Responsibility (§ 3E1.11 

// 

I/ 

11 
Def. Inir.l.al.s -~--

https://understc1.nd
https://PagelD.26


l 

2 

3 

t; 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

:. 3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

1.9 

2C 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

ase 3:19-cr-01420-BAS Document 12 Filed 04/25/19 PagelD.27 Page 12 of 17 

B. ACCEPTANCE Of R:CSPONSiaILITY 

Notwithstanding paragraph A above, the USA0 wi.ll not be obl_:_gated 

to recommend ar:y adjustmer.t for Acceptar.ce of Responsibility un:ier 

u.s.S.G. §§ 3El.1 if Gefendant engages iE cor:duct ir:8ons.::..st~1nt with 

acceptance of responsibil~ty including, but not limited to, the 

following: 
l. Fai:.s to truthfully admit a complete factual bas.is as 

stated in t-h-e plea a-:: the ti:11e the plea is entered, or 

falsely denies, or :nakes a statement inconsistenc 

with, t:1e. factual basis set forth in this agreement; 

2. Falsely d_enies prior cr-im:;.na.l conduct or convictions; 

3. Is untruthful with the Government, the Court or 

probation offic.er; 

4. Materia:ly breaches this plea a~reement in any way; or 

5. Contests or assists a::-iy third party in contesting the 

f_orfe:.ture of property(ies) seized in :::ormection with 

this case. 

c. FURTHER A;JJUSTMENTS AND SENTENCE RE;JUCTIONS 
INCLUDING THOSE UNDER 18 U.s.c. § 3553 

The parties agree that the Defendant may request or recommend 

additional downward adjustments, departures, inc:.Jding criminal history 

departures under USSG § 4Al.3, or sentence reductions ~nder 1B U.S.C. § 

3553. T!:e USAO may oppose ar.y downwar.d adj:1stments 1 departures and 

sentence reductions not set forth in Section IX, paragrapt A above. 

D. NO AGREEME~T AS TO CRIMINAL HISTORY CA'I'EGORY 

The parties have no aqreernent ai:; to Defe~1dant I s Criminal History 

Category. 

E. "FACTUAL BASIS" AND "RELEVANT CONDUCT" INFORMATION 

The parties agree that -;:be facts in the "factual basis 11 section o:: 

this agreement as to both the federal case and the state cases am true, 

and may be considered as "relevant :::onduct" under USSG § :.a1 .3 and as 

tt-.e r.ature and cir:·cumstances of the offense under 18 U.S.C. § 3533 (a) (1.) 

12 Def. Initials C)D~-
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F. PART!ES' RSCOMM3N0A'rIONS REGARDING CUSTODY 

Tl",e parties agree that the USAO will recommend that De.fer.dant. be 

sentenced at the low end of the advisory guidel:..1e range calc-ulated 

above. 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT /FHiE/ RESTI TUTION/FORFEITURB 

?pecial Assessment 

The parties will jointly recorr.mend that Defendant pay a special 

assessment .in the amount of $100.00 in the federal case to be paid. 

forthwith at the tiw.e of sente~cing. The special assessments .shall be 

paid through the office of the Clerk of the District Court by bank or 

cashier's check or :noney order made payable to the "Clerk, Onited States 

District Court." 

Restitutio;1. 

~he parties do not r.econmend imposition o.f a restitution order in 

the federal case in :ight of the difficulty of determining the 

individualized loss amounts suffered by each victim due to Defendant's 

cond-;1ct. See 18 use § 3553A (cl (3) (B) . However, any agreement as co 

restitution herein applies only to the federai case and not the st:;ite 

case. Defenda!1t understands tha.t restitution may be ordered in the 

state case pursuant to Oefendant 1 s guilty plea in the state case. 

3. Fine 

The parties do not re2ommend impas.ition of a fi:1e upon Defendant 

d=.1e to her limited financial prospects anci because the cost of 

co.llectlon, even taking i:--,to account the Inmate Responsibility Program, 

likely would exceed the :cuno•.rnts that could reasonably be expected t.o be 

collected. 

H. S.UPERVTSED RELEASE 

If the Court imposes a term of supervi$ed -re lease, t.he parties 

agree that Defendant will not seek to :-educe or terminate early the terrr. 

of supe.::-vised. relaase Ur.ti: she has served 2/3 of her period of 

Superv:.sed Re:ease. 

I I 
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X 

DEFENDANT WAIVES APPEAL AND COLLATERAL ATTACK 

A. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO APPEAL CONV!C'r:CON 

In exc:~iange for the concessions by the USAO and SOCDAO in the 

fede1:al ar.d state c,;:1.ses in this plea agreement, Defendant waives, to the 

full ex.ten!: of tr'.e law, any right to appea~. the convictions, sentence, 

and restitution orders in both the fede:::-al and state cases. 

a. •IAIVER OF RIGHT TO COLLATERAL ATTACK 

Defendant waives, to the full extent of th_e law, any right to 

collate~ally attack the convi~tion, sentence, and any restitution order, 

except for: a post-convictio~1 collatera.~. attack based on a claim of 

ine£fective assistance of counsel. 

C. OBJECT!ONS 1'0 UNITED STATES' RECOMMENDJ\TION 

If Defendant believes the recommendation by the VSAO or SDCDAO is 

not ir. accord with chis plea agreement, Defendant will object at the 

time of sentencing; otherwise the objectior. will be deerr.ed w.3.ived. 

XI 

BREACH OF THE PLEA AGREEMENT 

A. MATERIAL BREACH OF PLEA AGREEMSNT 

Uefend3;it. acknowledges, u:iderstands, and ag.rees that if Defendant: 

violates or fails to perform any of her obligations under this agreement, 

S'...1Ch violation or failure to perform wiL. co:i.stitute a mater:ial b~each 

of th:.s agreement. 

Defendant acknowledges, understands, and agrees :urther that the. 

following non-exhaustive list of coti.duct by Defendant unquestionably 

constitutes a material breac.:h of this plea agreement: 

l. Failing lo plead gui l.ty pursuant to this agi:·eement; 

2. ~-Jithdrawinq the guilty p~ea or attempting to withdraw the 

guilty plea; 

Failing to fully accept responsibility as established in 

Section IX, paragraph B, above; 

4. Failing t.o appear in court; 

14 . t" ~I\De~. _111 .,_a ... sC T 1 e&::::__ 
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5. failing to abide by any lawful court order related to 

this case; 

6. Appealing or: coJ.late~al ly attac~ing the sentence or 

conviction in violation of sectioD X of this plea 

agreement: or 

1. EngaginrJ in additional criminal conduct from tho ti.me of 

signing this agreement until the time of sentencing. 

B. CONSEQUENCES OF BREACH 

In the ever.t of a material breach by Defendant of this plea 

agreement, Defendant w.ill not be able to enforce any of its provisions, 

and the USAO and SDCDAO v.1ill be relieved of ail obLi..gat;.:.ons under this 

plea a.greement~ For example, the USAO or SDCDAO may pursue ar.y charges 

including those that were dismissed, promised to be dismissed, or not 

filed as a result of this ~greement. Defe:1dant agrees that any statute 

of limitations relating to st:ch charges is tolled as of the date of th.is 

agceernent; Defenda.:-\t also waives any double jeopardy defen5e to such 

chai:-ges. In additior., the !JSAO or SDCDAO may move to set aside the 

Defendant's guilty pleas. Defendant may not withdraw her gu:.lty pleas-

based on the pu=suit of re~edies for her breach by the USAO or SDCCAO. 

XII 

COMPLETE WAIVER OF PLEA-DISCUSSION EXCLUSION RIGHTS 

If Defendant breaches the plea agreement or the g~il ty pleas entered 

pursuant to this plea agreement are set aside far any .reason, Defendant 

agrees that: (i) the stipulated factual basis statements in this 

agreement; (ii) any statements made by the Defendant, under oath, at the 

guilty p.:.ea hearings in federal a1~d s::ate court; and (iii) any evidence 

derJved from S"..1Ch statements, are adrt1issiDle against Defendant in the 

prosecution's case-in-c'.1ie£ and at ar.y other stage of the p.roceedir..gs 

in any prosec'..ltion of or action against )efendar.t on tr.e cur~ent charges 

and/or any ether ::::harge,9 1:.hat the USAO and SUCVAO may pursue against the 

Defendant. Addi t.ionally, Defendant voluntarily, and intelligently 

15 
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waives any argument under the Unit_ed States Constitution, any statute, 

Fecieral Rule of E;vidence 1ll0 1 Fede:.-al Rule of Criminal Procedure 11 (f), 

and/or any other federal or CaJ.iforn.ia rule, that these statements or 

any evidence derived from these .statements should be suppressed or are 

inadmissible, The watver of the aforementioned rights by Defendant is 

ef(ective as soon as the par:.1.es sign this agreement, and is not 

contingent upon a federal or st.ate court u1 timately accepting 

Defenda~t's guilty pleas. 

XIII 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

The plea agreereents .::_n the s::ate case, which is i..ncorporated hereir., 

together with the plea aqreement in the federa2. case embody the entire 

agreement between the parties and supersede any other agreement, written 

or oral. 

XIV 

MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT MUST BE IN WRITING 

No modif:..cation of c.his plea agr::@ement: shall .be effective unless 

in writing signed by a.-;__1 parties. 

xv 
DEFENDANT AND COUNSEL FULLY UNDERSTAND AGREEMENT 

By signi;1g this agreemenr.., Defendant certify that the Defendant has 

read it. Defendant has discwssed the terrr:s of this agreement with 

defense counsel and fully und.e:::-stands its meaning and effect. 

II 

II 
I , 
' f 

II 
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X\YI 

DEFENDANT SATISFIED WITH COWSEL 

Defendant has cor.su.lted w.:.th counsel and is satisfied with 

counsel I s representatior., This is the independent opinion of Defendant, 

and defense counsel did not advise Jefendant about what to say in this 

regard. 

ROBERTS. BREWER, JR, 
U~ited States Attorney 

~ 
Assistant C.S. Attorney 

SUMMER STEPHAN 
At tor;neyiego ~strict 

DA1drz/t 7 RTIN 

~,l?l/y 

RENEE PALERM.O 
JOHN PHILPOTT 
Deputy District Attorney 

DATED 
Cou sel for SHANNON MOORE DEVANE 

IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING PROVISIONS TO WHICH I AGREE, I SWEAR UNDER 
PENALT't 0]" PBRJURY THAT TlIE FAC'l'S !t-1 TilE "FACTUAL BASl'.S" SECTION ABOVE 

ARE TROE. 

~ '1,U)uJ Ov~ 
SHANNON MOORE DEVANE 
::>efenda'.1.t 

DATED 

17 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Criminal Case No. 19CR1420-BAS 

Plaintiff, ORDER 

V. 

SHANNON DEE-MOORE 

DEVANE (1), 

Defendant. 

No objections having been filed, IT IS ORDERED that the Findings and 

Recommendation of the Magistrate Judge are adopted and this Court accepts 

Defendant's plea of guilty to Count One (1) of the Information. 

Dated: May 13, 2019 

United States District Judge 
n.Cynthia Bashant 

19CR1420-BAS 
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RELATED,SEALDC 

U.S. District Court 
Southern District of California (San Diego) 

CRIMINAL DOCKET FOR CASE#: 3:19-cr-01420-BAS-1 

Case title: USA v. Devane Date Filed: 04/25/2019 

Assigned to: Judge Cynthia Bashant 

Defendant (1) 

Shannon Dee-Moore Devane 

Pending Connts 

18:371 - Conspiracy 
(I) 

Highest Offense Level (Opening) 

Felony 

Terminated Connts 

None 

Highest Offense Level (Terminated) 

None 

Complaints 

None 

represented by Anthony Edward Colombo , Jr 
Law Office of Anthony E Colombo Jr 
l 05 West F Street 
3rd Floor 
San Diego, CA 92101 
(619)236-1704 
Fax: (619)236-1852 
Email: 
anthonycolombolegal@gmail.com 
LEAD ATTORNEY 
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED 
Designation: CJA Appointment 

Disposition 

Disposition 

Disposition 

https://ecf.casd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?82 l 055124756236-L _ l _0-1 10/2/2019 

https://ecf.casd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?82
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Plaintiff 

USA represented by Valerie Chn 
U S Attorneys Office Southern District 
of California 
Criminal Division 
880 Front Street 
Room 6293 
San Diego, CA 92101 
(619) 546-6750 
Fax: (619) 546-0450 
Email: Valerie.Chu@usdoj.gov 
LEAD A'ITORNEY 
A'ITORNEY TO BE NOTICED 
Designation: Assistant United States 
Attorney 

Date Filed # Docket Text 

04/25/2019 l INFORMATION as to Shannon Dee-Moore Devane (I) count(s) I. (rla) 
(Entered: 04/25/2019) 

04/25/2019 2. WAIVER OF INDICTMENT by Shannon Dee-Moore Devane (rla) (Entered: 
04/25/2019) 

04/25/2019 l NOTICE OF RELATED CASE(S) by Shannon Dee-Moore Devane of case(s) 
15cr2821-BAS. (rla) (Entered: 04/25/2019) 

04/25/2019 Surrender of Shannon Dee-Moore Devane (no document attached) (rla) 
(Entered: 04/25/2019) 

04/25/2019 4 ***English. No Interpreter needed as to Shannon Dee-Moore Devane (no 
document attached) (rla) (Entered: 04/25/2019) 

04/25/2019 5 Minute Entry for proceedings held before Magistrate Judge Mitchell D. Dembin: 
Initial Appearance as to Shannon Dee-Moore Devane held on 4/25/2019. 
Defendant states true name to be Shannon Dee-Moore Devane. Bond set as to 
Shannon Dee-Moore Devane (1) 0/R. Arraignment on Information as to 
Shannon Dee-Moore Devane (1) Count 1 held on 4/25/2019. Not Guilty plea 
entered., Change of Plea Hearing as to Shannon Dee-Moore Devane held on 
4/25/2019. Plea entered by Shannon Dee-Moore Devane (1) Count I. Plea 
Tendered by Shannon Dee-Moore Devane Guilty on counts I of the 
Information. Excludable(s) started as to Shannon Dee-Moore Devane: XT from 
4/25/19 to 7/15/19. PSR Ordered; ( Sentence With PSR set for 7/15/2019 09:00 
AM before Judge Cynthia Bashant.) Court orders the plea agreement to be filed 
under seal. The government is ordered to submit a redacted plea agreement for 
the court's docket. Should a request for transcript be submitted for today's court 
proceedings by someone other than appointed defense counsel, the assigned 
AUSA or Judge Bashant the matter will be directed to Magistrate Judge Dembin 
for determination. (CD# 4/25/2019 MDD 19-10:55-11 :16). (Plaintiff Attorney 
Valerie Chu, AUSA). (Defendant Attorney Anthony Colombo, CJA). (Pretrial 

https://ecf.casd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?82 I 055124 756236-L _I_0-1 10/2/2019 
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Services Jovana Mederos). (rla) Modified on 4/25/2019 (rla). (Entered: 
04/25/2019) 

04/25/2019 2 ORDER Setting Conditions of Release. Defendant Shannon Dee-Moore Devane 
(1) is released on personal recognizance. Signed by Magistrate Judge Mitchell 
D. Dembin on 4/25/2019. Qah) (Entered: 04/26/2019) 

04/25/2019 z ABSTRACT OF ORDER Releasing Shannon Dee-Moore Devane re 2Order 
Setting Conditions of Release (Pretrial Release Order). Defendant appeared in 
Court, fingerprinted and released. Qah) (mdc) (Entered: 04/26/2019) 

04/25/2019 ~ CONSENT TO RULE 11 PLEA before Magistrate Judge Mitchell D. Dembin 
by Shannon Dee-Moore Devane. Qah) (Entered: 04/26/2019) 

04/25/2019 JJ2 FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION of the Magistrate Judge upon a 
Tendered Plea of Guilty as to Shannon Dee-Moore Devane: Recommending that 
the district judge accept the defendant's plea of guilty. Court excludes time from 
4/25/2019 through 7/15/2019 pursuant to 18 USC 316l(h)(l)(G). Signed by 
Magistrate Judge Mitchell D. Dembin on 4/25/2019. Qah) (Entered: 04/26/2019) 

04/25/2019 ll CJA 23 Financial Affidavit by Shannon Dee-Moore Devane. Qah) (Entered: 
04/26/2019) 

04/25/2019 12 REDACTED PLEA AGREEMENT as to Shannon Dee-Moore Devane. 
(Attachments: # l State Court Plea Agreement) Qah) (Entered: 05/02/2019) 

05/13/2019 l1 ORDER ACCEPTING GUILTY PLEA as to Count One (I) of the Information, 
as to Shannon Dee-Moore Devane, adopting JJ2 Findings and Recommendation. 
Signed by Judge CynthiaBashanton 5/13/2019. (sxm) (Entered: 05/13/2019) 

06/20/2019 14 MOTION to Continue Sentencing Hearing Date by Shannon Dee-Moore 
Devane. (Colombo, Anthony) (tcf). (Entered: 06/20/2019) 

06/21/2019 15 ORDER granting l± Joint Motion to Continue as to Shannon Dee-Moore 
Devane (I). Sentence With PSR set for 7/15/2019 at 9:00 AM is vacated and 
reset for 9/23/2019 09:00 AM in Courtroom 4B before Judge Cynthia Bashant. 
Signed by Judge Cynthia Bashant on 6/21/2019.(no document attached) (sxm) 
(Entered: 06/21/2019) 

09/16/2019 12 Joint MOTION to Continue Sentencing Hearing by Shannon Dee-Moore 
Devane. (Attachments:# l Proof of Service)(Colombo, Anthony). Qah). 
(Entered: 09/16/2019) 

09/17/2019 17 ORDER granting 12 Joint Motion to Continue as to Shannon Dee-Moore 
Devane (1 ). Sentence With PSR set for 9/23/2019 at 9:00 AM is vacated and 
reset for 1/13/2020 09:00 AM in Courtroom 4B before Judge Cynthia Bashant. 
Signed by Judge Cynthia Bashant on 9/17/2019.(no document attached) (sxm) 
(Entered: 09/17/2019) 

09/17/2019 .lil. Acknowledgment of next court date by defendant Shannon Dee-Moore Devane 
to appear on 1/13/2020. (Colombo, Anthony). Qah). (Entered: 09/17/2019) 

https://ecf.casd. uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?821055124 7 56236-L _I_0-1 10/2/2019 
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